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TO OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), I hereby present
the annual results of REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 March 2005.

OPERATING RESULTS
During the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group recorded a turnover

of HK$48,174,000 (2004: HK$61,184,000). The loss attributable to
shareholders was HK$376,313,000 (2004: loss of HK$2,126,000).

The Board does not recommend the pavment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2005.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Compared with last year, our results for the year under review

-reflected our sustainable business operations in strategic investments

and capital market activities, as well as financing business.
Accompanied by the gradual recovery of the Hong Kong economy
in the year of 2004, the Group took a cautious approach on the
strategic investments and therefore, recorded a stable growth.
However, by leveraging on our management skills, we improved
our operating efficiency and achieved a 12% reduction in our

operating costs.

Our challenge has been to invest at the right pace and at the right
time in the growing markets. To do this, we have pursued a business
strategy of diversification. After extensive research and consideration,
we are certain that the solar-energy-related business will become a
new engine to increase our Group's earnings. In July 2005, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a company wholly-
owned by Dr. Zoltan Kiss, a world renowned solar power expert, to
acquire the entire issued capital of Eaglefly Technology Limited
(“Eaglefly”) for a total consideration of approximately
HK$123 million. On completing this acquisition, the Group, through
Eaglefly, will hold a 51% equity interest in Terra Solar Global Inc.
and its subsidiaries (the “Terra Solar Group”}.
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Terra Solar Group and its management team are recognized experts

in solar power development. They were instrumental to the
development of the technology and manufacturing facilities that are
currently used in a majority of the world’s a-5i thin-film production.
The Group regards the Terra Solar Group as a viable investment
target. Given the rising oil prices during the past six months, as
well as the rapid and long-term increase in worldwide demand for
energy — particularly when fossil-fuel resources appear to be in a
continuing decline - the strong market growth and interest in solar-
power projects is expected to be sustained. The Group considers the
Terra Solar Group as an unique investment opportunity to tap into
the fast gfowing and highly rewarding environmentally friendly
energy business with leading market position and unparalleled
technology. We are confident that this acquisition will generate

excellent returns to our shareholders.

In the vear ahead, we will focus our efforts in expanding the newly
acquired solar-energy-related business while continue to develop
our existing core business segments in order to maximize the returns
for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to
express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their continued support and confidence in the
Group. I would also like to thank the management team and all
staff members for their devoted service and lovalty.

Last, but not least, I would like to thank my fellow directors who
have offered invaluable advice and leadership over the year.

Chan How Chung, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 July 2005
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the period under review, the Group continued to be
principally engaged in two major businesses - strategic investments
and capital market activities as well as financing business. This year
has been challenging due to the dampening effect on investor
confidence caused by increasing uncertainty in the overseas
investment environment. In order to broaden the Group’s earnings
base, we have been actively identifying suitable opportunities for
our key business strategy of diversification. In this connection, the
Group announced in July 2005 that it had entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to tap the high-growth solar energy business.

Strategic Investments and Capital Market Activities

For the first half of the financial year, the unfavorable investment
environment in major overseas stock markets, including renewed
fears over terrorist attacks, heightened tension in the Middle East
and rising concern over interest-rate hikes and high oil prices,
adversely affected the performance of the Group’s securities
investments. Conversely, improving economic conditions
strengthened market confidence in the second half. In Hong Kong,
there was good macroeconomic news with deflation officially
declared to have ended in October 2004 and the unemployment rate
dropping to 6.4% for the year ended 31 March 2005. The continued
recovery of Hong Kong’s property market and strong land sales
further boosted market sentiment. As such, during the period of
review, except for an unrealized loss on securities amounting to
HK$22 million, the realized gain on securities trading recorded a
profit of HK$3 million.

Financing Business

The Group continued to record positive results in financing services
in early 2004. For the period under review, turnover from this
business segment accounted for 6% of the total turnover of the
Group. Demand for finance is growing in tandem with the general
expansion of corporate and investment activity and we believe that
the Group will benefit from these opportunities. We will continue to
adopt a prudent and conservative financing policy while maintaining
strict control of risk to protect the interests of our shareholders.
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Placing of New Shares

In November 2004, the Company completed the placement of 340
million new shares to independent investors, at HK$0.04 per share,
raising net proceeds of approximately HK$13 million which was
used for general working capital and future investments. We were
delighted with the overwhelming positive response from
independent investors to this placement, which we believe is a
reflection of the financial market’s confidence in the Group’s
investment value and growth potential. The placement has not only
broadened the Group’s shareholder base but also boost the liquidity

of our shares.
Private Placing of Listed Warrants

In June 2005, the Company issued up to a maximum of 550,000,000
listed warrants by way of private placing at the issue price of
HKS$0.046, each conferring the right to subscribe for one new share
at the initial exercise price of HKS0.116 up to an aggregate amount
of HK$63,800,000 at any time during the period from 4 July 2005 to
3 July 2007. The Directors are of the view that the placing of warrant
is a good opportunity to strengthen the Group's financial position
and enhance its ability to develop and capture business

opportunities.
Acquisition of Solar Energy Business

In July 2005, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Multichannel Investments Limited. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company will acquire the entire issued share capital
of Eaglefly Technology Limited (“Eaglefly”) for a total consideration
of approximately HK$123 million. Upon completion of the
acquisition, Eaglefly will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Group, through Eaglefly, will hold a 51% equity
interest in Terra Solar Global Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Terra
Solar Group”) with this investment forming the basis of the Group's
entry into the solar energy business. The Group believes that solar
power will bring dynamic, long-term business opportunities,
especially against the background of recent oil price rises, growing
worldwide energy demand and the apparent decline in fossil-fuels
reserves as an affordable and sustainable resource. In addition, the
Group believes its investment in the Terra Solar Group will
strengthen the Group’s earning potential and recurrent income base
and have a positive impact on the Group's long term profitability.
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Outlook

The Group will continue to execute its strategy of diversification.
Therefore, we will focus on three core business segments: strategic
investments and capital market activities, financing business and
solar energy business. The Group is optimistic that Hong Kong’s
economy will maintain solid growth and provide new opportunities
in its capital market, financial and corporate advisory businesses. In
particular, Hong Kong ranked first in Asia and third in the world
last year in terms of capital raised, with total IPO and post-IPO
equity funds reaching some HK$265 billion, out-performing the
London and Tokyo stock exchanges. This demonstrates that Hong
Kong has further consolidated its position as the premier
international capital-raising center for Mainland China. Moreover,
in July 2005, the Mainland China’s central bank revalued the Chinese
yuan by 2.1 per cent, abandoning the yuan peg to the US dollar and
letting it float in a tight band against a basket of foreign currencies.
Other Asian currencies will benefit from RMB appreciation and the
Group will grasp this opportunity to bring favourable returns to its
shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

For the year ended 31 March 2005, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$48,174,000 (2004: HK$61,184,000), representing
a decrease of 21%. The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the
decrease in contribution from the strategic investments and capital
market activities. Turnover of this segment was approximately
HK$45,120,000 during the year ended 31 March 2005 (2004:
HK$60,974,000).

Loss attributable to shareholders was HK$376,313,000 (2004: loss of

HK$2,126,000). The basic loss per share was 18.05 cents (2004: 0.14
cents). The loss was mainly due to the provision of doubtful debts
in other receivables which resulted in a provision of HK$350,000,000
and an unrealized loss on trading securities of HK$21,569,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The provision of HK$350,000,000 represented the non-payment of
the consideration from the disposal of the Group’s interest in 87.5%
of the issued shares in REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited (“RIL").
On 29 October 2003, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Sky China Holdings Limited, an independent third
party, for the disposal of a 87.5% interest in RIL. Despite repeated
demands made by the Group, Sky China Holdings Limited has failed
to make full payment. As a result of default in payment of the
purchase consideration, the Group decided to adopt a prudent

treatment in respect of doubtful debts and accordingly a provision

of HK$350,000,000 has been made.
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 March 2005, the Group had net current assets of HK$38,042,000
(2004: HK$369,677,000). The decrease was again due to the provision
of doubtful debt amount to HK$350,000,000.

At 31 March 2005, the Group had a total of HK$7,841,000 in cash
and cash equivalents {2004: HK$1,217,000). Most of the cash reserves
were placed in Hong Kong dollar short-term deposits with major

banks in Hong Kong.

Net cash inflow from operating activities for the year ended 31
March 2005 was approximately HK$4 million as compared to a net
cash outflow of approximately HK$72 million for the year ended 31
March 2004. The increase in inflow was mainly explained by the
decreased in trading securities purchased during this year and
decreased in loans receivables. The Group will continue to adopt a
prudent approach to monitor and control the Group’s risk exposure.
Net cash inflow of HK$50 million from investing activities for the
year ended 31 March 2004 represented the proceeds received from
disposal of a 12.5% interest in a subsidiary. Net cash inflow from
financing activities for the vear ended 31 March 2005 was
approximately HK$2 million as compared to HKS$15 million for the
year ended 31 March 2004. The decrease in cash inflow from the
financing activities during this year represent the net of the
repayment of convertible notes of HK$11 million and other cash

inflow from financing activities.
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As at 31 March 2005, the Group had outstanding loans of
HKS$6,752,000 which included a secured loans of HK$2,787,000 (2004:
HK$10,073,000) and an unsecured loan of HK$3,965,000 (2004:
HK$Nil). The loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
interest bearing at prevailing commercial lending rates. These loans
were used to finance the Group’s operations.

The gearing ratio of the Group increased slightly to 19% as at 31
March 2005 from 13% as at 31 March 2004 (it is derived by dividing
the aggregate amount of bank borrowings, convertible bonds and
other borrowings by the amount of shareholders’ equity). The
liquidity ratio of the Group, represented by a ratio between current
assets over current liabilities, was 292% (2004: 692%), reflecting
adequacy of financial resources.

The indebtedness of the Group decreased by 71% from
HK$55,073,000 as at 31 March 2004 to HK$16,147,000 as at 31 March
2005. Of the total debts outstanding as at 31 March 2005, all of them
are due within one year (2004: due within one year). During the
year, the Group continued to maintain most of its borrowings on an

unsecured basis.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available facilities, the
Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present requirements.

Funding Strategy and Foreign Exchange Exposure

To manage the risk associated with an uncertain market environment,
the Group pursues a funding strategy of using equity as far as
possible to finance long-term investments.

The Group is eprsed to a very limited level of exchange risk as the
business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.
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Share Capital Structure

During the vear under review, a placing of 340,000,000 new shares

of HK$0.01 each at a price of HKS$0.04 per share was made by the

Company. The net placing proceeds of approximately HK$13 miilion

was used as the general working capital of the Company.

Share options exercised at HK$0.0448 per share on 4 October 2004 ;

resulted in the issue of 85,469,970 ordinary shares of the Company.
The total proceed received of HK33.8 million was used as the general
working capital of the Company.

On 24 November 2004, 2% convertible notes of HK$%7,000,000 were
converted into 179,487,179 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.039 per share. Then on
29 November 2004, 2% convertible notes of HK$8,000,000 were
converted into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.04 per share. On 1
December 2004, 2% convertible notes of HK$10,000,000 were
converted into 238,095,238 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.042 per share.

Apart from the above, there was no change in the share capital
structure of the Company during the year under review.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 12 January 2004, the Group entered into a conditional sale and
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purchase agreement with REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited =~ B#ERAERLEAETEFRTE B #
regarding the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of REXCAPITAL Financial Group Limited
REXCAPITAL Financial Group Limited (“RFG”) at a consideration (TREG]) 2HMEHETRE - RES
of HK$229,000,000, subject to adjustment with reference to the 229,000,000 7T - M 7H ?FH}%E BimEZ R
unaudited consolidated net asset value of RFG and its subsidiaries RIERFCR EME LR (AW IRFGERE D #
(together the “RFG Group”) as at the determination date in BEETHHZABENEAEREZEEMA
accordance with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement, and B N TEREURS M -REGEHEEX

will be payable in cash upon completion. The RFG Group is
principally engaged in the provision of financial services including
broking, securities margin financing and asset management. This
transaction has been terminated on 6 May 2005 as the Group was
not satisfied with the result of the due diligence review on RFG
Group.
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“Management Discussion and Analysis (contitived) - -

Charges on Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2005, the Group's trading securities with market .

value of approximately HK$11,018,000 have been pledged to secure
other loans granted to its subsidiary (2004: HK$28,989,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2004: HK$Nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2005, the Group had 13 full time employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on the
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic
remuneration, discretionary bonus and share option may be granted
to eligible employees by reference to the Group’s performance as
well as individual’s performance.
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-B’idgraphiqal Details of Diréctq'rs and Senior Management

CEEREEEEAARE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 44, was appointed as an
executive director and the Chairman on 17 June 2002 to oversee the
overall operations and business development of the Group. Mr Chan
holds a LLB degree and is also a professionally qualified accountant.
He has over 20 years of experience in corporate restructurings and
reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance. Mr Chan
is also an executive director of REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings
Limited.

Miss LEE Huei Lin, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director
on 17 June 2002 and is responsible for daily operations and corporate
development of the Group. Miss Lee holds a bachelor degree in
Business Administration majored in Accounting. She is an associate
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators. Miss
Lee has over 18 years of experience in the area of corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, securities work and fiduciary assets
management. Miss Lee is also an executive director of REXCAPITAL
Financial Holdings Limited.

Mr CHAN Wai Kwong, Peter, aged 52, was appointed as an
executive director on 8 April 2002. He graduated with a bachelor
degree in Social Science (Economics) from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada in 1978. Mr Chan has over 23 vears of experience
in marketing and business development. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr Chan was a chief operation officer of Chinainfohighway Hong
Kong Limited, a total Internet solutions provider. Mr Chan is also
an executive director of Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited
and an independent non-executive director of China Golden
Development Holdings Limited, both are listed companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr CHU Chik Ming, Jack, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
director on 7 February 2005. He holds a MBA degree in real estate, a
Bachelor of Science degree in business management and an associate
degree in construction. He is a Certified Commercial Investment
Member. Mr Chu is a non-executive director of ViaGOLD Capital
Limited (“ViaGOLD”), a public company listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange, since May 1999 and was appointed as the chairman
of ViaGOLD since February 2004. He has extensive experience in
strategic investment of number of essential business and IT projects
focused at creating an e-Commerce infrastructure in China. Prior to
that, Mr Chu was a real estate consultant, consulting on projéct
feasibility, site selection as well as property market analysis.
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Mr SELIGMAN Pierre, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
director on 7 February 2005. He holds a Bachelors degree in French
Literature and a textile degree in knitwear from the University of
Leeds in the United Kingdom. Mr Seligman is an executive director
of ViaGOLD since February 2004. He has more than 15 years
experience in local and overseas trading business working as a senior
executive.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 5 October 1998 and a member of the audit
committee of the Company on 29 March 1999. Mr Chow is a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr Chow graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honours degree
in Social Science. He then obtained an honours degree in Laws from
the University of Birmingham in 1987. Mr Chow was admitted as a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1990 and has been
in private practice since then. Currently, Mr Chow is an Assistant
Solicitor with Messrs P. C. Woo & Co., Solicitors & Notaries of
Hong Kong. Mr Chow also serves as an independent non-executive
director of three other listed companies in Hong Kong namely CCT
Tech International Limited, REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings
Limited and eForce Holdings Limited.

Mr YIN Tat Man, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a2 member of the Company’s audit committee
on 30 September 2004. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree from
University of Toronto in Canada. He is a professional business
executive with over 20 years of experience in the information
technology industry specializing in the field of project management,
risk management and channel management. Currently, Mr Yin is an
IT director of an international IT and system technology company
based in Shanghai.
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Mr CHAN Pei Cheong, Andy, aged 44, was appointed as an -

independent non-executive director and a member of the Company’s
audit committee on 30 September 2004. He is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in financial management, investment and corporate
finance areas for 20 years. Mr Chan holds a master degree in business
administration from the University of Durham, England and an
honours diploma in accountancy from the Lingnan University. He
is also a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Mr Chan is currently a director of an accounting
firm in Hong Kong and also an independent non-executive director
of another listed company namely Guangdong Kelon Electrical
Holdings Company Limited. From March 2001 to September 2002,
he also served as a non-executive director of Shang Hua Holdings
Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHOU Joseph, Chief Executive Officer, aged 52, holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Mechanical Engineering. He has been the
president of many organizations and has extensive experience in
the area of project searching, project planning, project development
and project management. He is also a Vice Chairman of Chinese
Inventions Association of Northern America. Mr Chou joined the
Group in October 2004.

Mr MA Kwok Hung, Warren, Group Treasurer, aged 48, joined the
Group in August 2004. Mir Ma is a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

| Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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“Directors’ Report

SR ERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit herewith
their annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set

out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analyzes of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out
in note 4 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, turnover attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total turnover
for the year.

The Group is principally engaged in strategic investments and capital
market activities. In the opinion of the Directors, it is therefore of no
value to disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”)) in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2005 and the

state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 29 to 80.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2005 (2004: HK$Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 14 to the financial statements.
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- Directors” Report (continued)

CEWEERE @0

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
ACCUMULATED LOSSES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in accumulated losses and reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 25 to

the financial statements.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Chan How Chung, Victor (Chairman)
Lee Huei Lin

Chan Wai Kwong, Peter
Chu Chik Ming, Jack {appointed on 7 February 2005)

*Seligman Pierre (appointed on 7 February 2005)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Siu Ngor
Yin Tat Man (appointed on 30 September 2004)

Chan Pei Cheong, Andy (appointed on 30 September 2004)

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (resigned on 30 September 2004)

In accordance with bye-law 88 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr Chan
Wai Kwong, Peter retires and, being eligible, offers himself for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr
Chu Chik Ming, Jack, Mr Seligman Pierre, Mr Yin Tat Man and Mr
Chan Pei Cheong, Andy retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other

than normal statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the Directors’ interests in contracts are set out in note 29

to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, its fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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, Dlrector Report (contmued)
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2005, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives and their associates in the shares of the
Company as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long Position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (the

HEHERFETBEAAZHESHEL

RIEEREZAZ+—-H EERELE
IFRTHRABRES ZHﬁL‘E?)\iﬁAr\/\T7
HEfhy cp oA AR IR 5 R RO ([ 8% R B
B %3521A§EEE§%?ZS’AQT§Z%
MEZzHARREXRBEF LS EFES
BHZSNEESTR ([FESFRI)) ANE
ALAREEEEXGMARLE (BZ
Frl) zE SR BT

RS R0 SRR (TRE])

“Shares”) in the Company T
Percentage of
Name of Director Number of Shares Type of interest issued share capital
HEps it 8 B 1 25 S 51 HERITRAET I
Chan How Chung, Victor 689,060,662 ' Interest in controlled 25.03%
(“Mr Chan”) {Note a) corporations
RER(TBREE]) (ff §Ea) ZEMNFEE
Seligman Pierre 23,100,000 Beneficial 0.54%
("Mr Seligman”) (Note b) g
(T SeligmanE % 1) (B Z£D)
Notes: Bt 3E

a. Of the 689,060,662 Shares beneficiallv owned by Mr Chan, 258,052,510
and 360,000 Shares are held by Mega Market Assets Limited and Sino
Success Development Corp. respectively, both of which are wholly-
owned by Mr Chan. The remaining 413,881,152 Shares and 16,767,000
Shares are held by RPI Holdings Limited and REXCAPITAL
International Limited respectively. The entire share capital of RPI
Holdings Limited is owned as to 75% by Mr Chan and as to 25% by
Miss Lee Huei Lin, a Director. The entire share capital of REXCAPITAL
International Limited is owned as to 75% by Mr Chan, as to 12.5% by
Miss Lee Huei Lin and as to 12.5% by an independent third party.

b.  Mr Seligman is beneficially interested in 23,100,000 options granted by
the Company.

a. HMREEEHEH 689,060, 662@% A (5
%+ 258,052,510 A% & 360,000 A% i fi 7 Al &
RAELEEREZLAE Mega Market Assets
Limited &Sino Success Development Corp.
¥ - K ER413,881,1528% % 16,767,000 A% X
Rl R BEE RS RESFEER/A
HE 4 25%2Z RPI Holdings Limited# f ¢
REXCAPITAL International Limited f1 Bl 52
EHEAE7S%ES EERAEF125%MEH
RSB IBZEEFTI25%EE-

b, Seligmank XA HHHEFALAHLEZ

23,100,000 % 8% HE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2005, none of the Directors
or chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 July 2002 (the
“Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and other persons who have made a contribution to the
Group as incentives and/or rewards for their contributions to the

Company or its subsidiaries.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant options to the eligible
participants as defined in the Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted should be
accepted within 30 days from the date of offer. Upon acceptance of
the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (c) the nominal value of
a share.
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Dlrectors Report (continued)
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of approval and adoption
of the Scheme provided that the Company may at any time seek
a.pproval from its shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue as at the date of grant. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive Directors or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant or
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance

by the Company’s shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme will expire

on 29 July 2012.

The Directors do not consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical
value of the share options granted during the year because in the
absence of a readily available market value of the share options on
the ordinary shares of the Company, any calculation of the value of
options ascertained on various theoretical bases and subjective
assumptions will not be meaningful and may be misleading to

shareholders in the circumstances.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme
was 376,717,006 Shares (representing 13.69% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report).
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EFNREBSEIHBAL (ERR LR
) EREAL R RREERAZCETR
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e RAERALERREMME

ERETMFESYHEESLEEE fﬁ?xtﬁ
BARE R ENI0EE AT {EEARE.

/\@ﬂtﬂfﬁmﬁﬁﬁuM\'ﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁééﬁi
HE st BN E-—_FEtBEZ+HE
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HRSEEAETERMERELL &Y #HE
ZmE RESEERERERTIBAER
HENEBEEEENEERRTRERER

Rl EEXEBERFRNZLERE

MEREELEAEE-
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' Direttors’ Report (continued)

J& R HE ()

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

RASFRBAEFHARLEREZ ZH D0

The movements in share options granted under the Scheme during

the year are shown below: T
Number of options
BRENR
Name/ Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At31 Date of Exercise
Category of Aprl during during during March offer to grant price per Exercisable
participant 2004 the year the year the year 2005 options share period ‘
(HKS)
&/ RIZEWE RIFELE REE  SRGEH p
SRAEH ME-H Erih ERiTE ER%%  ZRZT-H ik (¥ ATHERR :
Seligman Pierre - 23,100,000 - - 23,100,000 25/11/2004 0.0880 26/12/2004 - 19/12/2014
(Director) (B %) (note b)
(fifih)
Other eligible participaﬁts 32,234,012 - - (16,117,006 16,117,006 22/12/2003 0.1600 2/1/2004 - 1/1/2014
AEgEREEAL - 85,469,970 (85,468,970) - - 15/9/2004 0048 27/9/2004 - 26/9/2014
(note ¢) {note a)
(Hizc (fftal
- 62,300,000 - - 62,300,000 25/11/2004 0.0880 20/12/2004 - 19/12/2014
{note )
o fm
' Total £ 8 32,234,012 170,869,970 {85,469,970) {16,117,006} 101,517,006
Notes: &t

a.  The closing price of the Shares on 14 September 2004, being the date a.

immediately before the date of grant of such options, was HK$0.042.

b.  The closing price of the Shares on 24 November 2004, being the date b.

immediately before the date of grant of such options, was HK$0.09.

BORZETFNERA+TEB (NEEFEE
BREFLEHAWZE) Z W 50042 T-

BHR_FFOE+—BZ+M@MAE

(B E i

HHBRER G B 8) Z AT E5R0.09

BT
c.  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before c.  RRHRBEMERELTE BB 2 T -
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$0.045. {8 £0.045# 7T -

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR BARGABFZLH

DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the  BREXHTBEIN L7 -HERLF HA x
Company, its holding company, its fellow subsidiaries or any of its - % [ [ff /& 2> &) B E (T {a] By 7R 4% B 7% £ (R 4R ] 7
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to ~ R B ESHEIMEH AFELEEFIEH %

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or A7 B B AR fa] HAb 20 B 2 A%y BRAE ¥ T
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. e
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‘ ‘Dlrectors Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in business which is considered to compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

AR

R T o 2 M 2%

Wik TRAIESI10Q)65 BB R TR
ERETE S FE S EEOE T S -
BHAEREGNT:

Competing business

BFHER

REXCAPITAL Finance Limited (“RFL”)
BEFEEFERLA (THRESD

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI")
HEMBERLA (THREHED

TKR Finance Limited (“TKR") {in liquidation)
SEBRMFERLAD (TREHEME]) (FlH)

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director of the above companies
and is deemed to be their substantial shareholder. Miss Lee Huei
Lin is a director of these companies. The terms and conditions of
the financing loans of each of RFL, RPI and TKR are market driven
and agreed at arm’s length between the borrowers and the financiers.
When making decisions on the above competing businesses, the
relevant Directors, in the performance of their duties as directors of
the Company, have acted and will continue to act in the best

commercial interest of the Group.

Money lending

Money lending

&N

Money lending

K

Fﬁ%%%iﬁii/\ﬂzfi%x?ﬁ?ﬁﬁaﬁi
ERE-FTERNEELALFAZEE-HHE
FE HEMBERGRARMBEXEZHE
EMZBEA RGO T S EmTaEESE
HRATHEEBE T LREFERL
REE - FHERE (NBTREELAFELAH
ErBERE) ZCEMIRERRTERE
BEREFREMNEZTS-
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! Directors’ Report (contined) -

I
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2005, the interests or short positions of the following
parties in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

EEBRK

MRIEERFE=ZA=Z+—8 - KELARE
HHE R REREDBGEETEZ RN
HFOEARAELERMGPHERZEHK
WA WTF:

Long Position in the Shares RRBZHER
» Percentage of
Name of shareholder Number of Shares Type of interest issued share capital
B 5 R B 1 25 85 HERTRAT 2L
RPI Holdings Limited 413,881,152 Beneficial owner . 15.04%
(Note a) TR
(§ff 5Fa)
Mega Market Assets Limited 258,052,510 Beneficial owner 9.38%
(Note b) BaBEAE A
(Hfitb)
Notes; Bfat:

‘ a.  RPI Holdings Limited is owned as to 75% by Mr Chan. The interest
disclosed herein represents part of the 689,060,662 Shares in which Mr

Chan was taken to be interested as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

b.  Mega Market Assets Limited is wholly-owned by Mr Chan. The interest
disclosed herein represents part of the 689,060,662 Shares in which Mr
Chan was taken to be interested as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2005, the company had
not been notified of any other person who had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the company.

24 REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited = 078 5 B35 g 4 PR 4 5

a. RPI Holdings Limited 3 B 5 4 # H 75%%&
e PR BEIEE N ALXEFTRERIT
HABZEHHEE] MRS ARMEE
HEHL By B 5 M 4572 689,060,662 R AL Z H

— &5y o

b. Mega Market Assets Limited £ B4 2
WA LU BBz AL EERE
BETHABZHEEE —HAESETHEMN
FEEWR B HE W & 2 689,060,662% fE 9 Z
B —Fh e
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- _Direc’tors" R'epor-t'-(con.tim;ed)~ :

;;ﬁ?ﬁ@?ﬁ%%ﬁ)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2005.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of connected transactions of the Company and the Group
during the vear ended 31 March 2005 are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements. Other than as disclosed therein, there was no
other connected transaction of the Company and the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2005.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at 31 March 2005 are set out from notes 21 to 23 to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 81

and 82.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set

out in note 30 to the financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

NS - b SR A 2 A

ELAREMBLRAINBRE_SFFTHEFE=A
SH-BLEEHMERRE HEHHEEAL
@l bTTEse.

B 32 5
AARRAEZERBE-TEFAEZAZT
—HEEEZRELGHETIRNHBERE
MiEL20 - B DR E SN RIKEZETL
FZRZ+—AULER AAARFEDH
EHIHELS

AT Sk R B £ 5K

ANARAEER -FEAFZAZT—8
2 SR SE AR R LA 18 B A U MY B S
BiEE21%23

L AF BB R

ARERBEEEMEREEZFEEARE
EREMHETI RN A ERPSIREH:
3B 7R ) w3

A 42 MR RAE A BT B 5 0 5 S AL B TS IR R
i£30°

B S
A4 B 2 2 F RIS E B v L A B
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Dlrectors Report (conhmmd)

J%ggﬁ%MU

iy

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2005, in compliance with the Code of Best
Practice as previously set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
prior to 1 January 2005, which remains applicable to disclosure in
annual reports in respect of accounting periods commencing before
1 January 2005 under the transactional arrangement, except that
two out of the three independent non-executive Directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
at the Company’s annual general meeting as specified in the bye-
laws of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company consisted of Mr Chow Siu
Ngor, Mr Yin Tat Man and Mr Chan Pei Cheong, Andy, the three
independent non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group.

AUDITORS

KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company on 11 November 2003.
Grant Thornton were appointed subsequently on 14 January 2004
Grant Thornton retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 july 2005

‘ZéuH?ﬁU&r“’f
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© Auditors’ Répc&rt |

MR

Certified Public Accountants
Member of
Grant Thornton International

To the members of
REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 29 to 80 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that

appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance wit.h section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s and the group’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

Grant Thornton "?:.
ﬁ] 1gFﬁEﬁTT
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Auditors’ Report (continﬁéd)

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and the group as at 31 March 2005 and
of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton
Certified Public Accountants
Hong-Kong, 28 July 2005
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Consohdated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 Mmch 2005 '

2005 2004

ZEZHE ZEEZENE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o+ T THETT

Turnover BEH 3 48,174 61,184
Other income ﬁ:ﬁﬂ A 5 1,678 242
Cost of trading securities sold EXEEHERA (38,602) (46,615)
Unrealized loss on trading securities J~ /\ftf;! HIRZAZFHESH

carried at fair value ZREHRER (21,569) (4,643)
Staff costs g 8 B (6,130) (7,500)
Depreciation & 4] (7)
Other operating expenses EfBEHZ (6,963) (7,397)
Provision for other receivables Hth FE Ui ST 1R

- disposal of subsidiaries —HEMBLE 18 (350,000) -

- others —Hih (1,476) (232)
Loss from operations REEHR 6 (374,889) {4,968)
Finance costs g AR 7 (908) (2,225)
Non-operating income FBEWA 8 1 5,058
Loss before taxation B B¢ i &5 18 (375,796) (2,135)
Taxation BIE 9 (517) -
Loss after taxation BBEER (376,313) (2,135)
Minority interests DEBREES - 9
Loss attributable to shareholders J K B A 5 1R 10 (376,313) (2,126)
Loss per share HREE

Basic ZER 12(a) (18.05) centsfl {0.14) centsfli

Diluted #HHE 12(b)  (18.05) centsfll (0.14) centsfll

The notes on pages 35 to 80 form part of these financial statements.

FBISEORZMEBAMBHRER —H -

Annual Report 2005 & ZZFHEFER

29



Consohdated Balance Sheet

“As m‘fvl March 2005

& v g

2005 2004
“EEHE —EFNE
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Jiog=3 F#EST F# T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES VAR A
Non-current assets FiREgE
Property, plant and equipment WmE-EERRE 14 3 4
Goodwill ' 5k 15 47,890 50,602
Investments in securities HEE 17(a) - -
47,893 30,606
Current assets W F A
Trading securities X5EH 17(b) 13,388 39,598
Trade and other receivables FEATBR 3k B A0 FE YR 508 18 35,954 390,613
Tax recoverable B] Ug B £ TE 674 674
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEELEEY 19 7,841 1,217
57,857 432,102
Current liabilities W
Other payables and accrued charges HEiE s R BB A 20 3,151 7,352
Amount due to a related party ‘ FEAT BE 3 4\ &) $ 1B 21 9,395 -
Provision for taxation L IE B 517 -
Other loans Hi &= 22 6,752 10,073
Convertible notes Rl AT IR 23 - 45,000
19,815 62,425
Net current assets MEEETH 38,042 369,677
Total assets less current HEARNE
liabilities/net assets A HEFH 85,935 420,283
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEA R
“Share capital B 24 27,525 17,094
Reserves & 25(a) 58,410 403,189
Shareholders’ funds B E & 85,935 420,283

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by MBERRENZEZTHEELA -+ A\BEE §
the board on 28 July 2005 and are signed on behalf of the board by: ZeREREBEETR T TFTHNEHFEMAR ' g
EE: ¢
Chan How Chung, Victor Lee Huei Lin : ,i—;
B Chairman Director ’
e EE b
~—=-Themnotes on pages 35 to 80 form part of these financial statements. HBBEREHZMHEREMHFRE—F M-
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ﬁélénce Sheet i
' 12005 .

2005 2004

ZRBAAE —EFTME
Notes HK$000 HK$000
B2 Fitn FH#ET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES pede W =Kl
Non-current asset - R EEE
Interests in subsidiaries BN R 16 93,639 453,880
Current assets Wmh e E
Trade and other receivables - FEUTBR IR K H b FE A 2% 18 4,701 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEYD 19 7,741 1,141
12,442 1,141
Current liabilities WEh R
Other payables and accrued charges Hib SRR B RA 20 2,851 3,026
Amount due to a related party JE {+F B 8 /% B] FOR 21 9,395 -
Convertible notes AR E R 23 - 45,000
_ 12,246 48,026

Net current assets/(liabilities) RBHEE (&) AMTH ' 196 (46,885)
Total assets less current HEERTSY

liabilities/net assets Bl EEFME 93,835 406,995
CAPITAL AND RESERVES b )RR
Share capital R A 24 27,525 17,094
Reserves fe# # 25(b) 66,310 389,901
Shareholders’ funds B E 2 93,835 406,995
The financial statements were approved and authorized forissueby ~ MHEBREREN-_ZETAELE-+ABEE
the board on 28 July 2005 and are signed on behalf of the board by: EEERZENE T THEEERRE

=
Chan How Chung, Victor Lee Huei Lin
> ZEHH
Chairman Director

The notes on pages 35 to 80 form part of these financial statements. EISESOEZ MR AMBFRET M-
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For the year ended 31 March 2005

HAMNRIE

£ LR
2005 2004
ZRBRHF ZETINE
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
o822 T#T T T
Shareholders’ equity at 1 April WA — B 2R 420,283 373,148 1
Loss for the year FEEER ' (376,313) (2,126)
Movements in share capital: R4 &8 : 1
Shares issued on placement/ HEE, % i
subscription 317 B 24 3,400 1,800 B
Shares issued on conversion of B 55 4 T 3 B EE i 3 t
convertible notes T EITRE 24 6,176 1,732 Z
Shares issued upon exercise of B AT B AR R 3 ¥
share options mET RS ; 24 835 483
Share premium received from BATRR AR BT AR5
issuance of shares, less expenses EE - TIRERE 25(a) 31,534 45,246
Net increase in shareholders’ equity HERRETEFZH
arising from capital transactions FREEZRHEEH
with shareholders YN A 41,965 49,261
Shareholders’ equity at 31 March R=A=+—HZBEHELE 85,935 420,283

. The notes on pages 35 to 80 form part of these financial statements. EISESORZ MR AN FRF—Hh-
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t Consohdated Cash Flow Statement i |

For the year ended 31 March 2005

2004

2005
“ERNE “EEEF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
g3 THETT TER
Cash flows from operating activities ﬁf’g‘ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁiﬁﬁé
Loss before taxation and RO EBER
minority interests t“ HHIE R (375,796) (2,135)
Adjustments for: HEHEE: :
Interest expenses FLEF X 908 2,225
Other interest income H i Bk A _ 1 (102)
Depreciation e ‘ 1 7
Amortization of goodwill 7 2 18 5 2,712 2,712
Provision for other receivables Hih B s IEBE 351,476 232
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZINE 26 - (5,045)
Unrealized loss on trading securities LR BEEFEZZS
carried at fair value EHRTAREHEIR 21,569 4,643
Operating profit before HEESEEE
working capital changes rBEmM 869 2,537
Decrease/(Increase) in XHEHEDY S -
trading securities (3% h0) 4,641 (38,921)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and ji:3 L!SC REEEMEBIEKIE
other receivables b ) 3,183 (36,618)
(Decrease)/Increase in other payables X ﬁ‘EF@ i 5% R FE &t
and accrued charges B @) HEm (4,201) 961
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEHKFE (A BE 4,492 (72,041)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EMEFENED - (169)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBEE (A
operating activities B iP5 B 4,492 (72,210)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELMBRETE
Net cash inflow from HEWBLTZ
disposal of subsidiaries RERAFR 26 - 49,994
Other interest received HedH g 1 102
Net cash generated from investing activities REFHFBEREEFH 1 50,096

Annual Report 2005 s« Z“RFHFEER
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2005 2004
ZERLE —EFFTNE
Notes "HK$'000 HKS$'000
&L F#T F#T
Cash flows from financing activities BESHELANIAERE
Interest paid SENEIIP (507) (1,047)
Proceeds from other loans g HmEX 6,568 9,064
Repayments of bank loans and other loans HEHTER K H LK (9,955) (17,413)
Repayment of convertible notes BETHRRER (10,940) (631)
Proceeds from issue of shares, Bl S’Zfﬁsﬁ'ﬁ
net of expense B& 10 BT 1B 2IE 13,136 17,525
Proceeds from exercise of share options (Rg i 5%%%%?% FIE 3,829 7,736
Net cash generated from Bt & % B BT 17
financing activities BEiFsE 2,131 15,234
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BHERAESEYHMm,~
cash equivalents (BP)FHE 6,624 (6,880)
Cash and cash equivalents REA—HZBRER »
at 1 April Be%SEn 1,217 8,097
Cash and cash equivalents REAZ+—HZIRER
at 31 March Bl &% 64 19 7,841 1,217

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited w fH#EERIZRFIRL A

i S S € Ve s B ey o da

A R

5 A R R IR



_._'vNotes to the F1nanc1al Statements*ﬁﬁc S
" For the year ended 31 March’ 7()()5 ' RE

{w%wﬁm

= Huk 4 V4
GENERAL INFORMATION

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as the
““Group”’) are mainly engaged in provision of investment
advisory services, participation in primary and secondary

securities market and money lending.
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 29 to 80 are prepared in
accordance with and comply with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “'Listing Rules”).
The financial statements are prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified by the revaluation of trading

securities at fair value.
(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year. All material intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated

on consolidation.

— B EH

HEERERERLA ([F2E])
Eﬁiﬁﬁii Eifﬁﬁ’*é‘"ﬁfﬁ*ﬁ/—"“%%ﬁ
RAF (TBEHF]) LA RFEZER
%T%E&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ H B A (AR ]
ERIAEE]) TEEABEERBERE
BHERYE 2RITERREBEEWTHE
BREEXF-

EEFFBOR

RUAMFERERRZETEGIHEER
T

R

FEABBEF29ZE0EH IHEBER
HEeREETHASERNMEE
AzZEBEHTRSER LUREE
CARIRE) REBiCAHEBH LW
([EMRE) ZHEBERMFER -
FMBERENEBELRNARER
N URXGEHFEANAEBEER
i 1 d 5T

(b) Exa i

HEMBERRQEALFERENE
AABEGESAZ+—BLEE
ZHBRR-EHALNFAMZEKR
XERERHDERGEREFY
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- Notes to the F1nanc1a1 ‘Statements (continued) -
: :1 or the year wdcd 31 Mnrch 2()05

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. The gain or loss on
disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between
the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of its net
assets together with any unamortized goodwill or negative
goodwill taken to reserves and which was not previously
charged or recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the
Company.

Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses. The
results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable

at the balance sheet date.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as
at the date of acquisition. In respect of subsidiaries,
goodwill is amortized to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.
Goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet at
original amount less accumulated amortization and

impairment losses.
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2.

Notes to the Fmanc1al Statements (cnntmued)
“ 'For HTC year endcd 31 March 2()05 h weo

éu¢mw

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Goodwill (continued)

(e}

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill
which has not been amortized through the consolidated
income statement or which has previously been dealt with

as a movement in the Group's reserves.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognized impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was
caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature
that was not expected to recur, and subsequent external
events have occurred which have reversed the effect of
that event.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of

property, plant and equipment using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful life:

Furniture, fixtures and 4 to 5 years or over the
equipment remaining terms of the
respective leases,

whichever is shorter
(ii) Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant
and equipment is added to the carrying amount of
the assets if it can be demonstrated that such
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the

use of the assets.
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“Notes to the
© ""For the year ended 31 March 2005

tatements '(cont:inued)

< IR

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i1) Measurement bases (continued)

When assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss
resulting from their disposal, being the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets is included in the consolidated

_income statement.
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Annual rentals applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms.
Lease incentives received are recognized in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to the consolidated income statement in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Investments in securities

Investments held on a continuing basis for an identified

long-term purpose are classified as investment securities.
Investment securities are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less any provisions for impairment losses. Provisions
are made when the fair value of such securities has
declined below the carrying amounts, unless there is
evidence that the decline is temporary. The amount of the
reduction is recognized as an expense in the consolidated
income statement.

Provisions against the carrying value of investment
securities are written back to income when the
circumstances and events that led to the write-downs or
write-offs cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence
that the new circumstances and events will persist for the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the F1nanc1al Stateme;nts (cmztmued)‘
For the year ended 31 March 2005

ﬁﬁ%ﬁi’%mﬂm

S HOIL I

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

(h)

(1)

Investments in securities (continued)

All other securities, whether held for trading or otherwise,
are stated in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
value are recognized in the consolidated income statement

as they arise,

Profits or losses on disposal of investments in securities
are determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
investments and are accounted for in the consolidated

income statement as they arise.
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at
that date. Gains and losses arising on exchange are dealt

with in the consolidated income statement.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits repayable on
demand with any bank or other financial institution.

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

cash flow statement.
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: Ofes to the F1nanc1a1 Statements (continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

40

G Impairmer_{t of assets

The carrying amounts of goodwill, property, plant and
equipment and interests in subsidiaries are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses

are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

)

(ii)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed unless the loss was caused by a specific
external event of an exceptional nature that is not
expected to recur, and the increase in recoverable
amount relates clearly to the reversal of the effect of
that spécific event.

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,

net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.
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- Notes to the Financial Statements (continucd)
- For the yenr ended 31 March 2005 :

HHRERE o

fo- H L 1E

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow

of economic benefits is remote.
Employee benefits
(i) Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not

recognized until the time of leave.
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2.

. Notes to the Financial Statements (continued).
: hu llu l;cm cndcd 31 March 2005

11l

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

8

(m)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme which is available to all employees.
Contributions to the scheme by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to the consolidated income
statement represents contributions payable by the
Group to the scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred

taxes.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year using tax rates enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit

nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the F1nanc1al Statements (contmued) o '
> "For the jem ended 31 March 20()5 .

2.

~H b EIE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary -

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled cr the
asset realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Recognition of revenue
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with a transaction will flow to the Group and

the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognized as follows:
(i) Sales of trading securities

Proceeds from disposal of trading securities are
accounted for on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continned)”

For the year ended 31 Maich 20()5

l?i?ﬁﬁi'emﬁt

Pigt ’ s [ L

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Recognition of revenue (continued)

(ii) Investment advisory fee, referral fee and
placement fee

Investment advisory fee income, referral fee income
and placement fee income are recognized when the
services are rendered, the income can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that the revenue will be
received.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion
basis on the principal outstanding and at the rates

applicable.
(o) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated income

statement in the year in which they are incurred.
(p) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

(q) Discontinuing operations

A discontinuing operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group’s business that is disposed of or
abandoned pursuant to a single plan, and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations.
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Notes to the Fmanc1al Statements (contmuéd)
For the jear ended 31 March. 9005 '

2.

BB RN

Tk g

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES f{continued)

{r)

Segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different

from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment, Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between group enterprises within a
single segment, inter-segment pricing is based on similar
terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than

one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and

financing expenses.
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. Notes to the Financial Statements (onfinucd)
. For'the year énded 31 March 2005

'M&W%mﬁ

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.

(s) Recently issued accounting standards

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005.

EHEEGTHEOR ()
(s) HEHIMM 2 &t

TEGHNMACERMZELFR
BETZEEUBREEUURE
HEREL (T ERMBREE
B R _FETRE-A—HH
ERFBEZ e EMEMR
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=t —BLAFEZEBHRRE L
BREEMTEEMNHFEREEL.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the FEBCASSHTEMBEREE
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to AlZ R EBETFHFML - M REEE
state whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant BEHNEEMERSEREARE
impact on its results of operations and financial position. EXHERMBRNEEERNERY
20,
3. TURNOVER 3. BEMW
‘ 2005 2004
: ZERAE —ZEZWE
HK$'000 HKS'000
F#T Fi#ET
Turnover represents: EEEERE:
Financial advisory services B 7% B R AR 3% 715 5,840
Telecommunications and W&
technology - related services 8 BA AR - 2
Interest income from money BEEEFT
lending business FIB LA 3,054 208
Proceeds received from sale of HEXHESZ
trading securities Fﬁ &7 IE 44,405 55,134
48,174 61,184
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- Notes to the Fmanc1al Statements (contmucn') :
+ . For the |  year ended 31 March 2005

’

B
#

4. SEGMENT REPORTING 4. HMEH

AREAEERTAERRHAZRANT
oM EBLUERSREM LT ED

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has determined that business segments are its primary

reporting format, with each segment organized and managed ZEZERHIT XG40 Hl A
separately. REH- :
(a) Business segments (a) EHLW

Continuing operations: FREEEFRTF:

KR EREATIZED

Strategic investments and capital market activities

- Participation in primary and secondary securities - ZRIZDREBHETHRE
market and provision of capital market advisory (HH AT 5 B R AR B
services

Financing BE

- Provision of commercial and personal loans - REFMELRBAERX

Discontinued operations:

ERIUEEETF:

Bal &R A8 B AR 7S

Telecommunications and technology- related services
- REEMEMIHERE

- Provision of telecommunications and technology-

related services
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- Notes to the I
“Far Hie year ended 31 March 2005

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

tatements. (continued)

4, B H )

(a) EHLW #)

Continuing Discontinuved
£8% ERE
Strategic invesiments Telecommunications
and capital and techrology -
market activities Financing related services Unallpcated Consolidated
RRURTRFATRED BE ERRALERME RARHE &%
2005 2004 2005 2004 2003 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
ZEREE ZERIME I$%E4 CTTEE ZR%EE ZETEE I$%iIF ZTIRE ZE%EE IGIQEE
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEx THT TERL TER Téx TR TET TER TR TER
Revenue from FEHE
edernal customers  BRZYA 45,120 60,974 3,05 il - : - - 48,174 61,184
Segment result HES (3,48) (1,006) 3,066 210 - (63) - - (20,082) f861)
Unallocated operating %7 REE
income and expenses  ARER (334,807) (4,107)
Loss from operations  ERER (374,889) (4,968)
Finance costs Fans i (008) (2.225)
Non-operating income  #EE W A 1 5038 1 5058
Loss before taxation ~ REREE (375,796) 2135
Taxation - kKR (517) -
Lossafter taxation ~ REHESR (376,313} {2.1%)
Minority interests SERERE - 9
Loss attributable to
shareholders BRELER (376,313) {2,126)
Depreciation
for the vear FRIFE - - - - - 3 1 2 1 7
Amortization of
goodwill for the year FRFEHH m 212 - - - - - - 2712 271
Segment assets FPEE 66,885 94,038 103 37508 - - 782 Bl 103,730 482,766
Segment liabilities rEAfR (6,780) (14,158) (532) (13) - - (12,503) (48,234) (19,815) (62423)
Provision for other AbERIERE
receivables 1476 3 - - - - 350,000 - 351,476 Yl
Unrealized losson W% £ B FIEZ
trading securities ThEEZ
carried at fair ~ERER
value ' 21,569 166 - - - - - 2,569 1643

The Group did not have any inter-segment sales during either

years.
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4.

, otes. to the Fmanc1al Statemen
r the y year ended 31" March 2005 :
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Geographical segments

The Group participates in two principal economic
environments: Hong Kong and other areas of China.

In presenting information on the basis geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the country where
the contract is signed or the order is placed. Segment assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure are based on the
geographical location of the assets and liabilities.

4. SHREH @)

N
FEEEREIERBELEZE
MERELTFHEEMME-

EEIIMESHEHF T EHEA
BLUZETaNREHESZERA
REEE-HEE RELEFH
TEEERAMEFTERLTHER

Hong Kong Other areas of China Consolidated
Hi PELBEE B
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“EREE STFEE ZFREE “ETEE  ZRRRE  LIEE
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FT#T THT T#x F#T F#IT F#T
Revenue from RESR
external customers EEZWA 3,769 6,134 44,405 55,050 48,174 61,184
Segment results SHER (2,276) (2,560) {17,806) 1,699 (20,082) (861)
Segment assets NHEE 104,362 441,903 1,388 40,803 105,750 482,708
Segment liabilities THEE {17,025) (48,349) (2,790) (14,076) (19,815) (62,425)
(¢) Discontinued operation (c) BRILEBRRES

On 18 July 2003, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of a 12.5%
equity interest in REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited, an
intermediate holding company investing in the fibre-optic
network in China, at a cash consideration of HK$50,000,000.

On 29 October 2003, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with another independent third
party pursuant to which the Group disposed of its entire
remaining interest in REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited
at a cash consideration of HK$350,000,000. This transaction
was completed during the year ended 31 March 2004,
which constituted the discontinuance of the Group’s
telecommunications and technology-related operations.

RZEE=ZFLATNAB £T£H
HETEZFITLBHE UBER
ERFTEAHBEZFHERAS
REXCAPITAL Infrastructure
LimitedZ 12.5%f A # & > W&
{& £ 50,000,000 7T <

MNZEEF=ZE+AZTNE K&
MES-BIEZFFILA—HE
EmE omi-AE£E L e R
REXCAPITAL Infrastructure
LimitedZ 2% 8 TH % - HESE
£ 350,000,000% T MLIBERZ 5 E 7
HEZZZWHEZA=Z+—BIEE
EAEH - EREAEEZEREEH
BRI HEER-

Anmnal Renart 2005 =

ZESHAFEFH
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‘Notes to the Financial Statements (mnmmm)
For the year ended 3T March 2005

E’Hﬁﬁi’émﬁf 4

o Bl

4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. HHMER m)

(c) Discontinued operation (continued) (c)

The telecommunications and technology-related segment
is reported in the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2004 as a discontinued operation. The turnover,
results and net assets of that segment as at the dates of

disposals were as follows:

DERILBBEY #)

BAREREHEENEE_S®
WEZAZ+—HILEFEZHER
RTE2HRBERLEEEFE -4
MHLERBrEXH £85RE
EEEWNT:

2004
—zEmE
HK$000
Fi#ET
Turnover H A 2
Other income : HAthdg A -
Operating expenses HERX (67)
Loss from operations BEER (65)
Finance cost Rl A -
Loss before taxation % BB %5 18 (65)
Taxation I8 -
Loss for the year FRE1E (65)
Total assets mEE 395,020
Total liabilities HmEE (39)
Net assets BEEEE 394,981

The net cash flows attributable to the telecommunications

%A*’*"-‘ﬁ%?ﬁ%%Z%%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ

and technology-related segment included in the EHI-HHcHBEENT:
consolidated cash flow statement are as follows:
2004
—EFOE
HK$'000
T 7T
Net cash used in operating activities MEEHMAZHEESR (76)
Net cash generated from REEHEEZ
investing activities BeFH -
Total cash outflows Remd B4 (76)

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited » #HEEBEREFRAH
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OTHER INCOME

1A

2005 2004
ZRELF ZEEWE
HKS$'000 HK5'000}
Tt TR
Secondment services EHRTE 1,613 -
Others Hip 65 242
1,678 242
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS REBER
2005 2004
ZRERIUF TEETMEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T# T
Loss from operations is arrived BEEIER
at after charging: E k-
Amortization of goodwill RSk 2,712 2,712
Auditors’ remuneration ZE &
— current - REEF 390 850
- overprovision in respect —EFHBEH
of prior year B (108) -
Operating lease charges FHEYED
in respect of properties HEHERA 306 990
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BLEA CFEE
remuneration and including EEMe-EEE
amount recognized as expenses ZhRIZ
for defined contribution iR OR 38 | &
retirement benefit schemes) IE E 330 5,327 6,664
Amount recognized as expenses REHMXZ
for defined contribution RIRE R FE
retirement benefit schemes B E 115 134
FINANCE COSTS i AR
2005 2004
“RBHF ZEFEE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T#T T T
Interest on bank overdrafts, WMITE THAEERX
convertible notes and other loans HeEgeEz A 908 2,225

Annual Report 2005 & “ETHEFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
I-m the jear endrd 31 March 7003

¥k

Hl 4

8. NON-OPERATING INCOME FEBRA
2005 2004
—ERTE  CETNE
HKS$'000 HK$000
TH#E THTT
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries & &M &1 F 2 i i - 5,045
Others H it 1 13
1 5,058
9. TAXATION HHE
2005 2004
ZERLHF ZEFTNE
HKS$'000 HK$000
T FHT
Current tax - Hong Kong RATHIE -
Profits Tax for the year REZFERNER 517 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% FEAMERIEHRELS% (2 Z F
(2004: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. F:17.5%) REFEZ ’3 ?‘i’ﬁ? HE M

For the year ended 31 March 2005 and 2004, no provision for
taxation outside Hong Kong has been made as the companies
comprising the Group outside Hong Kong either sustained a
loss for taxation purpose or had a tax exemption.

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited » (HREBIZEREMLHE

& i 13 4

NHE_FZTHEFR_FTNE=Z/A=
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Notes to the Fmancml Statements (cmztmued)
For the year uufed 31 March' 2005 B

Tm&ﬁﬁwgm,

S H 1k 4

10.

11.

TAXATION (continued) 9. B (&=
Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at REFABENECHEI O EETER
applicable tax rates is as follows: ZEERZRMOT:
2005 2004
ZREHE ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T THET
Loss before taxation bk B AT ES 1B (375,796) (2,135)
Tax effect on loss before taxation  ZHE AHK EBFE Z KRB
calculated at applicable rate ERzHEELY (65,764) (373)
Tax effect of non-deductible ENCIEE: -
expenses MBEEE 66,919 1,538
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue HFEZEBRWEZRTEE (1,011) (1,358)
Tax losses utilized CEHBEER (20) (13)
Tax effect of current year’s AEERBIHFEERZ
tax losses not recognized BB 393 208
Other temporary differences HAif R
not recognized EEER - (2)
Actual tax expense EEHEISN 517 -

At 31 March 2005, the Group had deferred tax assets of

HK$3,684,000 (2004: HK$4,191,000) arising from tax losses. The
deferred tax assets are not recognized as it is uncertain whether
future taxable profit will be available for utilizing the tax losses.
Under the current tax legislation, the tax losses can be carried
torward indefinitely. '

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders includes a
loss of HK$355,125,000 (2004: loss of HK$3,218,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2005 (2004: HK$Nil) and the
Company did not pay any interim dividend during the year.

10.

11,

MoEEREZA=+—B -AE@H
BHEERMELZEEREELE
3,684,000 7T (ZF F M £ :4,191,000
D) c AANRIR G TS R A L
HEBMEERDA RN Z 8 AU EIE
MEEEYRBER -WBETHBEG
BEEBRTERPGEESS-

JBt SR B AN s
REELEZEEBREE-BEIAELN
7] B 7 ¥R 3% 2 A5 18 355,125,000 T (—
EEUULE: 583,218,000 7T) -

;358
EERAEBRYBE_ETIFE=/=

+—~a¢¢ﬁ=zaﬁt% SEENE T
AN FERTEL A TR
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“Notes to the Financial Statements (com‘mmd)_

For the year ended 31 Mmch 2005

e PR

12. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss attributable to shareholders of HK$376,313,000 (2004:
loss of HK$2,126,000) and the weighted average number
of 2,085,408,000 ordinary shares (2004: 1,537,309,000) in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share has been presented for both
years because the exercise of the Company’s cutstanding
share options would reduce net loss per share.

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the directors
and the five highest paid individuals (including directors and

employees) for the year are as follows:

(a) Directors’ emoluments

12. I ER

(a)

(b)

HFHREREBER

EREARABRITIEREEEESR
376,313,000 L ( —ZHNE 5
2,126,000 ) REEFERZE BT
38 A% 2 0 HE T 19 $82,085,408,000
BZ (- ZFEZ G4 1,537,309,0008% )
sE-

B8 W B
AT ERLEZERATIEERE

CHEMERERABRRY Sz
EfmMESFEZEREEER.

1B.EEHERERMEAL

FAEERERNZTEZFRANRSME
AT (BREESELRRE) ZaFEUT:

(a)

ML
2005 2004
—ZThE SEENE
HK$'000 HK$000
FH# L T

Fees e
Executive directors HITESE
Independent non-executive 8 1L FF # 4T

directors S

Other emoluments HEMm &

Salaries, allowances and o 51 54
benefits in kind B

Pension scheme B RET B
contributions (BN

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited ® fH&EBREHEFMRAE

200 233
200 233
591 591
12 12
603 603
803 836




- Notes to the Fmanc1al Statements (contmued)
’ For the'y jem ended 31 March 2005

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. EFEMERETHS AL (;ﬁ)”

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) ‘ (a) BEHBME (&)
The remuneration of the directors is within the following e THBRNZEREAZD
bands: T

Number of directors

P AY
2005 2004
—BRHEE  —ETNE
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 % 7T % 1,000,0008 7T 9 6
During the vear, none of the directors of the Group waived ENAEEZEEMENELA
any emoluments, and no emoluments were paid by the Ble REBTFEREMESE M
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon e UESRIIEMAREBRE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office MAFEEE 2 EESERERA
(2004: NIL). : B ZEZTHNEFTET -
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ABEEMEAL
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the FREEFRLVESMEALZF
year include one (2004: one) director of the Company, AR (ZFFLDE: —) &2
details of those emoluments are set out above. The RlEF EMs o N LXKkl
emoluments of the remaining four (2004: four) individuals I (ZEZTWEE M) ATz 8E
were as follows: mF
2005 2004
ZRRUF —EZME
HK$'000 HK$'000
T# T F#E T
Salaries, allowances and Fa RiER
benefits in kind EReME : 1,507 3,981
Pension scheme contributions & ¥k & #| it 3% 39 24
1,546 4,005

Annual Report 2005 = —_EEHFFR
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"Notes to the Financial Statements (mutznum’)
. For the year ended 31 March 2005 . ]
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 13. HEMERETHESAL &)
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals {continued) (b) Lfu B E®ME AL (&)
The emoluments of the four (2004: four) individuals with . MOy (CEEME O &S e
the highest emoluments were within the following bands: AtTZzBaesmENT:

Number of individuals

A%

2005 2004 5

—wers —zzmns  $§

HKS$Nil - HK$1,000,000 2 ¥ T 1,000,000 5t 3 I
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001#% 7T £ 1,500,000% 5T 1 1 3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group ERFEATEONLCRSHE 5

to the five highest paid individuals of the Group as an ANEITB e UER RS EMAE
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as £ E s H A A E B R S B BN E
compensation for loss of office (2004: HKSNil). HERBE (ZZFOETE 1:

JT) e ;é,'

o |
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. VI -BE Kk B
The Group g
2 {
Furniture, “ f

fixtures and - i

equipment Total 1 g’.

BR-EE

B ik st ;

HK$'000 HK$'000 E
F#ET FHET ¢ &

Cost AR %
At 1 April 2004 RIEZFONEWA—B 733 733 ?

At 31 March 2005 R-BREEFZA=+—8 733 733 B
Accumulated depreciation BEting
At 1 April 2004 MIZEMERE—E 729 729 i ;
Charge for the year FEEZIFE 1 1 : b
At 31 March 2005 R-FZHRE=ZA=+—H 730 730 3 ‘,

. Net book value R e % (L :

‘ At 31 March 2005 R-BREFZA=+—n 3 3
At 31 March 2004 RIFFEEZRAZ+—H 4 4

56  REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited m % EEHRA KA



Notes to the Fmancxal Statements (mntmued)
. For the year ended 31 March 2005 ‘,

}w%ﬁ%mﬁw,

— H LI

15. GOODWILL 15. W&
HK3$'000
FHET
Original amount JFAH
At 1 April 2004 and A ZEEWEMNA-ER
at 31 March 2005 R-ZEA¥=ZA=+—H 54,218
Accumulated amortization Rt
At 1 April 2004 PZZZHFENA—H 3,616
Amortization charge for the year  E X5 2,712
At 31 March 2005 W_BRHFZA=1+—H 6,328
Net book value W R
At 31 March 2005 ROZRAFLZA=+—H 47,890
At 31 March 2004 Ro_EREWNEZRA=+—H 50,602
Positive goodwill is recognized as expenses on a straight-line EREBNUEREE _TFHEH-FF

basis over 20 vears. The amortization of positive goodwill for
the year is included in “Other operating expenses” in the

consolidated income statement.

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

ErIMBZBHECTAGEHEERZ
TRt ER IR

16. M B 2 5] HE 23

The Company

2 7

2005 2004

ZRRHE ~EENE

HKS$'000 HKS$000

T Fi#ET

Unlisted shares, at cost ELEWBEG FERAEAR 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE S B B 4 B BR A 1,032,879 1,039,307
Less: Provision for doubtful debts i RIEHEH (913,182) (562,213)
119,697 477,094
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE 1 Bft J& 4 &) 3K 3B (26,059) (23,215)
93,639 453,880

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest U/ BB LARRIESZKM &

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. BREREEEBK Hﬁi .

Annual Report 2005 & ZFEAEER
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j; INotes to the Financia
i ' For-the year ended 31 March 2005

e f 4l 5 13

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

atements ’(colztinucd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2005 are as

16. BB Al HE2E (40)

MR_EFEE=ZR=Z+-BZEIERE

follows: AFFEEWMT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued issued capital
Name operation share capital held by Principal activities
Eidi A : HECBEARA
28 ERBH BEIRA Al TEEH
The The
Group  Company
¥ 30 AL
REXCAPITAL (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinar}‘f shares 100% - Provision of investment
Limited FE " of HKS1 each advisory services
MR (BB ARLT 10,000,000 fx & & & RELEBMES
ERIET
REXCAPITAL Enterprises Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of management
Limited Tk HK$!1 each services
BEEEARLE MMEERERLET BHREERY
D & M Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - Money lending
Fit HKS1 each HH
MEERERIET
Golden Chino Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Participation in primary

REXCAPITAL Group Limited

REXCAPITAL Technology
Limited

REXCAPITAL Financial
Services Limited

REXCAPITAL Strategic
Investments Limited

REXCAPITAL Management
Limited

AEETHRS

British Virgin Islands
ERELEE

British Virgin Islands
AREAHS

British Virgin Islands
EREYES

British Virgin Islands

AREAES

British Virgin Islands

REELHS

IRTERERIET

1 ordinary share of US$1
IMEERERIZT

1 ordinary share of USS]
IBEERERIEL

1 ordinary share of US§1
IBERRERIET

1 ordinary share of US$1
IREERERIZT

1 ordinary share of US$1
IREEREMRIET

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited ® % EERIERFRAE

100% 100%

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

and secondary

securities market
SHIERUE

EETIEEE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding
TEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER




S Notes to the Fmanc1a1 Statements (contlmud)
'~ For the year ended 31 Ma:ch 2005
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. B A n HER (®)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued issued capital
Name operation share capital held by Principal activities
303 S BHECERTBA
4R ERnE CETRA R4 EX-E 2
The The
Group  Company
A ARF
Capital View [nvestments British Virgin [slands 1 ordinary share of USs1 100% - Provision of nominee
Limited EEEAES REBRSRIER services
RUERIEARSE
Twin Star Agents Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US§1 100% - Holding nominees shares
EEETHE IREERERIET for the Group
in Hong Kong
AEEEREE
BEAEARR
REXCAPITAL Secretarial Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - Provision of secretarial
Services Limited TiE HKS1 each services
HERERFERLA REARERIET RUNERY

Annual Report 2005 s —RFHFFH
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N otes to the Financial Statements (contirmed)
For Hre year ended 31 Mmch 2005 : '
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 17. BHFEE
(a) Investments in securities . (a) BEFH
The Group
A4
2005 2004
ZERLE EZTME
HKS$'000 HK3'000
FHIT TiET
Unlisted equity securities, FFLTTRAES,
at cost R AN 109,200 109,200
Less: Provision for i {E
diminution in value 1 (109,200) (109,200)
" (b) Trading securities (b) Xa&EF
The Group
AR
' 2005 2004
ZERRHE ZEZNE
HKS'000 HK$'000
T T
Listed equity securities REELTZREAE
in Hong Kong, at fair value &4 L E AR 13,388 39,598
Market value of listed EHBEZTE
investments 13,388 39,598

At 31 March 2005, equity securities listed in Hong Kong of
HK$11,018,000 (2004: HK$28,989,000) were pledged as
security for other loans of HK$2,787,000 (2004:

HK$10,073,000) (note 22).

60 REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited » #H# EERIFERAMRL A

NIFEAFZE=+—RB 0 FE
wEMZ 11,018,000 T (T L M
£:28,989,000% 7T) BE AR B HE T
KHE-ER2,787,000 T (ZFZ M
£ :10,073,000% 50) Hii &5 > 18
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- Notés to the Financial Statements (contitnued)
For the'y year ended 31 March 2005 ”

Tw%ﬁ%m

2 ‘——HJ:‘ ¥ I"
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. HEWCR K B M 4 HE U sk
The Group The Company
LY. |
2005 2004 2005 2004

ZRRHE "TERE ZRRAEF —TENF
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

T#L T T T#L FiT
Trade receivables FE YR BR 31 31,187 39,297 - -
Deposits, prepayments and He BifRRE
other receivables HE b FE IR EIE 4,767 351,316 4,701 -
35,954 390,613 4,701 -
% Included in the trade and other receivables are trade receivables BIERERRAIEMEBRZRES A
g amounted to HK$31,187,000 (2004: HK$39,297,000), net of #H A& ££31,187,0008 T (ZFEFWEF
; specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts, with the 39,297,000 7T) Z BEULERZR (E F0BR R
following ageing: IR A EE) KRS T
- The Group
AEH
2005 2004
ZEBHE ZEZOmEE
!J HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x Ti#ET
Within three months ZEAR 1,005 37,829
More than three months but ZRZ=Z@A
less than six months HRABEAR 444 1,468
More than six months Z R E A
but less than one year BER—%R 29,738 -
More than one year B —F - -
31,187 39,297
Included in trade receivables are loan receivables amounted to S IE R UL BB AR 3K > 3575 31,020,000
HK$31,020,000 (2004: HK$37,300,000) arising from the money T (ZEFE M4 37,300,000 7T) EA
lending business. The loan receivables are unsecured and bear HEREF - HBERWERSERALEU
interest at prime rate plus 5% per annum. The credit terms REEMNEMSELRME -FLEEET
granted to the customers by the Group range from six months EFZERHAANETZMAXRE

to twelve months.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continucd) |
-+ For the year ended 31 March 2005 »

- Ml

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FE WMk B B 4l RE WK R ()
Included in trade and other receivables is a receivable of BEMRRBERALEMEERTIES
HK$350,000,000 representing the unsettled cash consideration 350,000,000% stz B FIE - AR B &
from the disposal of the Group’s interest comprising 875 fully 7 4 B JR REXCAPITAL Infrastructure
paid ordinary shares in REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited. Limited 89875 EH 2L ERZEHZ
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 29 October FUBRREANE-RBE_FTZT=Z5FTA7
2003, the consideration for the disposal of the Group's interest “tHARZEEWRE - REFTEER
in REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited, amounted to REXCAPITAL Infrastructure Limited
HK$350,000,000. As at 31 March 2005, none of the cash Z 2z 18 5 350,000,000 T =
consideration of HK$350,000,000 was settled and there has not TLHREZH =Z+— H 350,000,000
been any. subsequent settlement up to the date of approval of TZREREIRIMN BREMBFRE
the financial statements. A full provision has been made in the BB A L FREEMEEZ TR
financial statements in respect of the receivable. ‘ REBERRFEAZBUHAFLEZY

B

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. R& RBE%FEHY
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement RehBRRZRERReEEYES
comprise the following balance sheet amount: ‘ DTREERERZER:

The Group The Company
. AR A
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZRBRLE —ZTNE —ERHFE _FTTNE
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#T Fi&xT TF#T FiEL
Cash at banks and in hand e REiTEE 7,841 1,217 7,741 1,141

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 20. b HEAT SR K EEGT &

The Group The Company
A 4 1 7 4
2005 2004 2005 2004

ZERFHE ZZTEE —FFRE _TITEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T TET T#T FHET
Other payables and accrued oA FE TR R
charges EEER 3,151 7,352 2,851 3,026
All of the other payables and accrued charges are expected to FT 7 ARG BB R AL A A AT e
be settled within one year. EREIE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)
- -For the y jem ended 31 Mmch 20()5

21.

22,

;:"E; ) .

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 21. BEAS B & A KR
The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest free - BMBEELAFZEAERF 2ERE
and has no fixed terms of repayment. B E B
OTHER LOANS 22, Hfb 883k
Other loans are repayable within 1 year or on demand as AR—FRRBEEERBEREZEME
follows: /T
The Group The Company
A 25 [ AR H
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZERHE —_FTENE ZEFEF —FFTONE
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
T#T T#E T FHT THET
Secured (note 17(b)) FAEHE (BraE17(b) 2,787 10,073 — -
Unsecured AL © 3,965 - - -
6,752 10,073 - -
At 31 March 2005, a loan of HK$638,000 (2004: HK$8,010,000) MRIEZREZRZ+—H:—25%
was interest bearing at prime rate per annum and had no fixed 638,000 TZ ER (ZF T M E:

terms of repayment. The remaining balance of other loans of
HK$2,149,000 (2004: HK$2,063,000) were interest bearing at
prime rate plus 3% to 8% per annum and had no fixed terms of

repavment.

At 31 March 2005, a loan of HK$3,965,000 (2004: HKSNil) from
a related party was interest bearing at 3% per annum over the
prevailing prime lending rate offered by the Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and had no fixed terms
of repayment.

8,010,000 70) » HHE R Ty iZ & B #H 7|
EHE-TERZERE- BT AH
2,149, ooor%n:(—"*fuyi 2,063,000
) ZHEEREHCFEFNNENERE
%%Jﬁtﬁum”zsr“fﬁ i FEE EERK

&

RIEFRLEZR=+—HB —8%KH
B A+ A& 83,965,000 T2 EH (=
EXENE . TET) - EEMEDNLEFE
tEEYRTERLOFIEHMNBETERSE
EMEMIEGE TED EERH-
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Notes to the F1nanc1 1.Statements. (continued)

}m the year ended 31 Mmch 2005

lﬂ%ﬁimﬂi ()

= HL A

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

23, AR

The Group and the Company

ABBRALG
2005 2004
ZREHF ZEXEpNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#HT - FHE T
Current 5
2% convertible notes 2ER R ERE - 45,000
(a) 2% convertible notes (a) 2/E W[ ;B R4

On 13 December 2002, the Company issued the 2%
convertible notes (the “2% Notes”) of HK$80,000,000 to a
related party. The 2% Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of
2% per annum pavable semi-annually in arrears on 30 June
and 31 December and were due on 12 December 2004.
Each of the 2% Notes carry the right to convert, on any
business day prior to 5 business days before 12 December
2004, the whole or part of the principal amounts of the 2%
. Notes into ordinary shares of the Company at the lower of
the fixed conversion price, subject to adjustment in certain
events, of HK$0.36 per share (the “2% Conversion Price”),
and the floating conversion price (being 92% of the
arithmetic average of the 4 lowest closing prices per share

during the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior

to the relevant exercise date), provided that such price
shall exceed the nominal value of the ordinary share,
otherwise the conversion price shall be the nominal value
of the ordinary shares.

On 24 November 2004, the 2% Notes of HK$7,000,000 were
converted into 179,487,179 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.039 per
share.

On 25 November 2004, the related party transferred part

of the outstanding 2% Notes in the aggregate amount of
HK$8,000,000 to two transferees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continwed) .
For tlu Jenr ended 31 Mnrch 2005 B

(,u

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 23. WRERE @)

(a) 2EWHBERE (#7)

(a) 2% convertible notes (continued)

RIEENE+—R_+ LA
8,000,000 T2 2 EERITIALE

On 29 November 2004, the 2% Notes of HK$8,000,000 were
converted into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company -

of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.040 per :

share

On 30 November 2004, the related party transferred part

of the outstanding 2% Notes in the aggregate amount of

HK$10,000,000 to two transferees.

On 1 December 2004, the 2% Notes of HK$10,000,000 were °

converted into 238,095,238 ordinary shares of the Company

 82.0.040% JT % ¥ %4 200,000,000
R FRR00ERZAANF LHEE-

R oEENET—A=Z1TH -HE
A #3524 $£10,000,000%#: 5T
ZTREBEEZEE TR ZKE A

w_oEzEFENE+_F —8:
10,000,000 T Z 2 EE B IR iR E

of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HKS$0.042 per 5 fR0.042 JT % 8 73 238,095,238
share. RERCOIETZALNFELTIER-

WZFEEMENE+_F+=Z8 (3|8

) » B8 52 20,000,0008 JT Z 5 i
EEBUMESAAR AR L HER
WMEBEHE I T FEEEBHETH®
10,940,000 JT -

On 13 December 2004, the maturity date, the outstanding
2% Notes of HK$20,000,000 were payable in full as none
of them were converted into ordinary shares of the
Company. HK$10,940,000 were repaid during the year.

BE-_BTRE=ZA=+—H 2E
Z & 60,000,000 7T 2 AR E

Up to 31 March 2005, the conversion rights of the 2% Notes
in the aggregate amount of HK$60,000,000 were exercised

as follows: ‘ EHWATENT:
Value of Range of
‘the 2% Notes Number of conversion
converted ordinary shares price
R2E
FEzEE HEBRHH BREER
HK$'000 ('000) HKS
THET (FAx) T
During the year ended REE_ETE=F |
31 March 2003 ZA=Z+—HULEFEEX 18,000 112,500 0.16
During the year ended REZE_ZTNE 0.139 -
31 March 2004 ZERAZt—HLEEERA 17,000 121,894 0.141
During the year ended PERE_ZERS 0.039 -
31 March 2005 ZRE=Z+—HRLEEER 25,000 617,582 0.042

60,000 851,976
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 23, WHRBRER (@)
(b) 5% convertible notes (b) 5%W B RE i
On 26 June 2001, the Company issued the 5% convertible MZEEZ—FXNBZFAE ELN :
notes (the “5% Notes”) of HK$100,000,000 to an F) 2§47 100,000,000 jT 578 7 #4 Bt §
independent third party. The 5% Notes bear interest ata EB(EESE) T—BIE= '
fixed rate of 5% per annum payable semi-annually in HSEEBKEEENESERFE f
arrears on 30 June and 31 December and were due on 25 FMESXE (PRAZTER+TZ
June 2004. A=Z+—80) 8- R AR ZFE
MENBEZ+THEBEH
Up to 31 March 2004, the conversion rights of the 5% Notes RE-ZZNE=A=+—0 58
in the aggregate amount of HK$100,000,000 were exercised Z 45 £ $£100,000,000/ T Z B R TE
as follows: SHWATEWT
Value of Range of
the 5% Notes Number of conversion
converted ordinary shares price
R#sE
E M ¥EkEA He R
HK$'000 (‘000) HK$
FET (FB2) #E T
During the two year RHREZFE=ZF
period ended ZA=Zt—81 - 0.015-
31 March 2003 4 B B 93,000 2,425,735 0.16
During the year ended REBEEZZTTNE 0.132 -
31 March 2004 ZAZ+—-HLEEER ‘ 7,000 51,282 0.143
100,000 2,477,017
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: Notes to the F1nanc1al Statements (contumcd)
For'the 1/ear ended 31 Mmch 2005 -

E}Iﬁﬁi’ém

1ct.7_~ CAEEN A /Ig.ffé‘l)fc’:
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. A )
2005 2004
“E¥ELH —ETME
Number of Number of
shares shares
B 8 H BRnEE
('000) HK$'000 ('000) HK$'000
(F8) T#x () FET
Authorized: BBk
Ordinary shares of BEREEOETLZ
HKS$0.01 each L@ 100,000,000 1,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRAE A
At1 April M A— 8 1,709,400 17,094 1,307,873 13,079
Shares issued on placement BIE & m & TR M |
(note a) ’ (fff iEa) 340,000 3,400 180,000 1,800
Issue of shares B SRS E R :
on conversion of 5% AT R (7 o
Notes (note 23(b)) (B F£23(b)) - - 51,282 513
Issue of shares HERIERRE
‘ on conversion of 2% T RR
i Notes (note 23(a)) (B 2£23(a)) 617,582 6,176 121,894 1,219
: Exercise of share options (note b) THERRE (f iy 85,470 855 48,351 483
At 31 March : W=ZA=+—H 2,752,452 27,525 1,709,400 17,094
a (a) Shares issue on placement (a) BT R e
1
g Pursuant to a share placement announced on 8 November RBFEETEE+—-AANELMHZ
; 2004, the Company issued 340,000,000 ordinary shares with RE {7 Bt A< 2> B B% 17 340,000,000
; a nominal value of HK$0.01 each by way of placing at ‘ MR SR (E0.014 T 2 EER - U
HKS$0.04 per share for a total cash consideration of BROMETEE BRERESL
1K$13,600,000. Share issue expenses of approximately 13,600,000% JT - £7464,000% 7T &
E HK$464,000 was debited to the share premium account - BhBTHZEAROREERIOR
: (note 25). The net proceeds were used as general working (Bif3E25) - EF B ?i EHECEE—
] capital of the Group. Such issued shares rank pari passu BEEEE -ZECBITREAESE
g in all respects with the then existing issued shares of the NRERZEBITROHEZEHEY
Company. EHRSER-
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24, JBRAR (&)

(b) Share options | (b) &R

68

On 29 July 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). Under the 2002 Scheme, the
directors are authorized, at their discretion, to offer eligible
participants, being emplovees (whether full time or part
time), business consultants, agents, financial or legal
advisors whom the directors consider, in sole discretion,
have contributed to the Group, options to subscribe for
new shares. The directors are authorized to determine the
subscription price for an ordinary share granted to eligible
participants. Such price will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of offer, which
must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (c¢) the nominal value of

an ordinary share.

There is no general requirement that an option must be
held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the directors are empowered to impose at their
discretion any requirements at the time of granting any
particular option. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee is required to pay a consideration of HK$1.00 for
each lot of share options granted on or before the 30 days
after the option is offered.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option will be determined by the directors at their
discretion but will not be later than 10 vears after the date

of adoption of the 2002 Scheme.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme, and any other
schemes, if any, must not exceed 30% of the number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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E Notes to the Fmancml Statements (cnntmucd)

* For the year ended 31 Ma:ch 2()()5

Hi%ﬁi%l‘ﬁﬁif (1)

/'."‘ H it g

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised and outstanding options)
to each eligible participants in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
as at the date of grant.

Share option of 85,469,970 and 85,400,000 underlying shares
were granted by the Company respectively on 15
September 2004 and 25 November 2004 under the 2002
Scheme.

Certain share options were exercised at HKS$0.0448 per
share on 4 October 2004 which resulted in the issue of
85,469,970 ordinary shares of the Company and an increase
in the issued share capital of HK$855,000 and a share
premium account of HK$2,974,000, as detailed in note 25

financial statements.

24, A ()
(b) R%Bﬁ% (&)

HEROBRERHILEMI2AA
HHMBEA BB ATHITEATRR
Bo_ET_EFATRALEMEAE
AR R F R R (B
EITERMARTHEZEEE ME
BERETRABEZTZRHFZE A
BaEBRHERERAC BITRS
1%

KARARZEFNEAATREAR
EEME+—AZTRBERED
TEZEFE DRI ABRGE
£85,469,970/% & 85,400,000/% = 8%
fi - ’

%‘#Wllﬁ

KNFIHEETHRER -ETMNE
+AMA L FR0.0448# T Z AT E
BB T [F T 981785,469,97088 L &
B fEmEB M INE BITHRAE
855,000 7T & Az i & 18 R
2,974,000 7T - & B FEE &N AR B
R 325 -
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24, BAS ()
{(b) Share options (continued) ‘ (b) MEBHE ()
The following table sets out information relating to the TEIEEHEREFST ZER

Share Option Scheme:
T
Exercise Exercise At grant exercise '
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Date of period of price date of date of X
1 April during during during 31 March grant of share of share options options *:f
2004 the vear the year the year 2003 share options options options (note) (rote) B
R # REREE  REEE
ZRERE Z3Rnf BR& gLoH Ry
MA-0  EREY  EREE EARE ZAZT-0 RBES4AA BRESEN i & (Hii) (hiit)
HKS HK$ HK$
EX ET Ex
32,234,012 - - {16,117,008) 16,117,006 2/12/2003 2/1/2004 - 0.1600 0.16 N/A
1/1/2014 TER
- 83463970 (85,469.970) - - 15/9/2004 27192004 - 0.0448 0o4 - 0043
‘ : ‘ 26/9/2014
- 85,400,000 - - §5400,000 /1172004 20/12/2004 - 0.088 0.09 "N/A
19/12/2004 TER
Note: Bff 3%
The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the ERESHFHREFLEEZRLEMR
grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price on HEBBNEEEREREIMIIZE
the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the GRAZEZHETE L REESHER
options. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the HITERBEZALARDESBFRE
date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted average Z TR T (B B AR HE 2 B 2SR AR AT {E
of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all the exercises of WEF1E-
options within the disclosure line.
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For the year ended 31 March 2{)05

: H’hﬁﬁ:‘&l‘ﬂﬁ (5%)

G A A

- Bt ;l/,&* o

25. RESERVES 25. {6
(a) The Group (@) REM
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
T £ %2 1] SR RatE#R B
: HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
i F# T T T Fi#ET TR
j HZEEZF ‘
At 31 March 2003 ZBR=Z+—H 386,879 596,248 (623,058) 360,069
Share issued on placement BEMBITHRG 16,200 - - 16,200
Expenses for placement
of shares ELERMGHEX (475) - - (475)
; Issue of shares on conversion R|SEZER
: of 5% Notes mE {7 H 6,487 - - 6,487
Issue of shares on conversion & 128 Z i
g of 2% Notes i 9% 17 AR 15 15,781 - - 15,781
Exercise of share options ITIERRRRIE 7,253 - - 7,253
Loss for the year FEEEE - - (2,126) (2,126)
ZEENE
At 31 March 2004 ZE=+—H 432,125 596,248 (625,184) 403,189
: Share issued on placement HEEMmMETHER
: {note 24(a)) (fff5E24(a)) 10,200 - - 10,200
7 Expenses for placement B & Az B 3
‘ of shares (note 24(a)) (Bt 3324(a)) (464) - - (464)
3 Issue of shares on conversion & & i%2/E EW #IT
s of 2% Notes (note 23(a)) B% 4 (Gf5£23(a)) 18,824 - - 18,824
: Exercise of share options IT{EREAE
. (note 24(b)) (K 3E24(b)) 2,974 - - 2974
‘ Loss for the year FEEER - - (376,313) (376,313)
: Ro-BBESE
-, At 31 March 2005 =H=+—H 463,659 596,248 (1,001,497) 58,410

KL N KR
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25. RESERVES (continued) 25. f@ifl§ ()
(¢) Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed () BEBETRELFE ARFEZHER
t ‘surplus account of the Company is available for BRREBN IR AT
: distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay WETFTIHNERTAELAENLNEESR
a dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed MAESRPERE MRS SEY
3 surplus, if: AU
(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, (i) AorEENERIREEE
i unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or ‘ EEBFIAZEE ®
(i) the realizable value of the Company’s assets would (i) FLFAEEZAEREGMSH
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, WERALARIE C BT
issued share capital and share premium account. ; A A B AR i BRRZ Ao
In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March 2003, the BEEDE AQNTAR_EERE=
§ Company had no reserves available for distribution to its A=+—BiEAHSETFREZ
: shareholders (2004: HKSNil). RE(ZEFTHESE TET)
:
g
:
{
é
E
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Notes to the Financial Statements ontinued)
"..'For the year ended 31 March 2005 ' _

Significant litigation as at 31 March 2005 and up to the date of
these financial statements is summarized as follows:

On 21 September 1999, a former director of the Company, Mr
Wong Chong Shan, commenced proceedings in the High Court

27. OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 27. BREMBERYE
‘ At 31 March 2005, the total future minimum lease payments in RIEFZREZA=Z+—H > BEART
: respect of office premises under non-cancellable operating leases MR EEHEE - AEHE A BN
i were payable by the Group as follows: MoEYEREBEZREHENES
g BaF
¢
The Group
A H
¢ 2005 2004
: ZEFRLE TEENE
HKS'000 HK$'000
: TR T
Within one year —HR - 285
28. OUTSTANDING LITIGATION 28. MR FEHZHB
I

M_EEAF=A=Z+—BR&EEFRH
BREBHALZERNGAMBUT:

R—AANERRZT—H:ZL8Z
MEEEFEMLEENSSERRELR

:, against the Company claiming a sum of HK$5,000,000. Mr Wong A 8] & 8 & 5,000,000 T - E A L
’ Chong Shan alleged that he paid the said sum on the Company’s HEERBR—ANEEABREELE
! behalf in August 1997 to a third party as deposit and that the MEZFITHEEREESEES ER
i Company failed to make repayment to him. The directors have NEEARMEEHEHRIE-EEEER
i considered the matter and are of the opinion that since no FHREEA ZEaNFALEEEZ
: positive steps have been taken by Mr Wong Chong Shan to ZEFHEANAEZLBRABFLRERIT
; proceed with the action since June 2000, it is not necessary at B MZAERAMEHANLR T HR
this stage to make a provision in the financial statements for RTELBE-

1 these proceedings.

R

SR

. . T B g
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2005
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ' 29. HKBWEALZ S

Particulars of material related party transactions are as follows: EAHEAIXSHIELT:
2005 2004
—¥FEE  -FINE
Notes : HKS$'000 HK$'000
o= T Fi#T
Interest expense FE B X
- other loan, unsecured - H A B3 (EES) 29(a) 99 98
- other loan, secured - HbEH CFEM) 29(p) - 423
- convertible notes —HHBRER 29(¢c) 518 1,028
617 1,546
Operating lease charges MEZBE
in respect of properties EEER ‘ 29(d) 291 979
Commission i 25(e) 13 97
Financial advisory services income B %5 B FS iR B 0 A 29(H) - 980
Secondment services & &8 AR 55 ' 29(g) 1,613 -
Particulars of material balances with related parties are as HEBE NTZEREHRFEFNT:
. follows:
2005 2004
ZERAF —ZFTmE
Notes HKS$000 HK$'000
g TH# T FTET
Unsecured and interest bearing BELRSTZ
loans from a related company EEEFERFEEXR 29(a) 3,965 -
Convertible notes ' RE-YIE%:3 29(c) - 45,000
Convertible notes interest payable {1 A[$#R A EIE A B 129(c) 335 1,417
Trade receivable FE U BR 3K 29(b) - 1,205
Amount due to a related party FE {5 B 48 > B BRIE 29(c) 9,060 -
;
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(cont

inued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2005, short term loan of HK$3,965,000 (2004:
HKS$NIil) were advanced to the Group by a related party (the

“Lender”).

Interest expense payable to the Lender for the year ended 31
March 2005 amounted to HK$99,000 (2004: HK$98,000).

During 2004, a short-term loan was advanced to the Group by a
related company. The loan due to that related company was
interest bearing at prime rate plus 3% per annum. As at 31 March

2004, the loan was fully repaid.

No interest was pavable to that related company for the year -

ended 31 March 2005 (2004: HK$423,000).

As at 31 March 2005, no trading receivable arising from the trading
of securities with that related company (2004: HK$1,205,000).

Convertible notes of HK$25,000,000 were converted into ordinary
shares of the Company during the year. On 13 December 2004,
the maturity date, the 2% Notes of HK$20,000,000 became payable
in full as none of them were converted into ordinary shares of
the Company and were then transferred to other loans.
HK$10,940,000 was repaid during the year and HK$9,060,000 was
included in amount due to a related party as at 31 March 2005.
As at 31 March 2004, there were 2% Notes of HK$43,000,000

remained outstanding.

At balance sheet date, convertible notes interest payable to a
related company amounted to HK$335,000 (2004: HK$1,417,000).

Interest expense payable to a related company for the year ended
31 March 2005 amounted to HK$518,000 (2004: HK$1,028,000).

During the year, operating lease charges of HK$291,000 (2004:
HK$979,000) were paid to a related company for the use of office

premises.
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B

* For the year ended 31 March 2005

JEH

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(e)

During the year, trading securities were bought and sold through
broker firms (the “Broker Firms”). The sales and purchases of
trading securities excluding any commission expenses through
the Broker Firms for the year ended 31 March 2005 amounted to
HK$4,117,000 (2004: HK$23,757,000) and HK$1,125,000 (2004:
HK$8,402,000) respectively.

Commission expense incurred in respect of the sales and
purchases of trading securities amounted to HK$13,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2005 (2004: HK$97,000).

During the year, no financial advisory services income (2004:
HK$980,000) were derived from the provision of investment

advisory services to related companies.

During the year, secondment services income of HK$1,613,000
(2004: HK$Nil) were derived from the secondment of staff to

related companies.

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor, a director and a major shareholder
of the Company, is a beneficial shareholder of the related

companies in notes 29(a) to 29(g). He is also a director of the
related companies in notes 29(a), 29(c), 29(d), 29(f), 29(g) and
one of the related companies in note 29(e). Miss Lee Hueli Lin,

a director of the Company, is a director of the related companies
in notes 29(a) to 29(g). Miss Lee is also a beneficial shareholder

of the related companies in notes 29(a), 29(c) and one of the

related companies in notes 29(e) and 29(f) respectively.

REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited ® HREEEZRARA T
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

31.

The Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF

Schemes”) contributions are at 5%

» of the employees’ relevant

income as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of HK%$1,000 per

employee per month.

The Group has no obligations for payments of employee

retirement benefits beyond the contributions described above.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

(b)

On 12 January 2004, REXCAPITAL Group Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited to purchase the
entire issued share capital of REXCAPITAL Financial Group
Limited (“"RFG”) at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$229,000,000, subject to adjustment with reference to
the unaudited consolidated net asset value of RFG and its
subsidiaries as at the determination date in accordance
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. On 6
May 2005, REXCAPITAL Group Limited issued a letter to
REXCAPITAL Financial Holdings Limited exercising its
right under the conditional sale and purchase agreement
to terminate the agreement with immediate effect.

On 6 June 2005, an ordinary resolution was passed at a
special general meeting approving a private placing of up
to 550,000,000 warrants at an issue price of HK$0.046 per
warrant. The placing of warrants has been completed on
29 June 2005. The net proceeds was approximately
HK$23,600,000.

30.

31.
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31. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued) 31. ZiIF HEFH )

() On 9 July 2005, the Company entered into a conditional () WZEZXAFLAALE FLAH
sales and purchase agreement with Multichannel PREBEXBEEEMAILZAF
Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the British Multichannel Investments
Virgin Islands, to acquire the entire issued share capital of Limitedd ] Y E R AR EHZH - LI
Eaglefly Technology Limited, a company incorporated in BN RBELEBHEMALZ AR
British Virgin Islands. Eaglefly is an investment holding Eaglefly Techn‘ology Limited
company holding 31% interest in Terra Solar Group. ([Eagleflyl) Z 28R 2 ¥ 17 x4 -
The Terra Solar Group is principally carrying on business Eaglefly A~ Z IR EER LA FH
in thin-film photovoltaic industry. The aggregate Terra Solar#E B 51% 2 £ i% < Terra
consideration is HK$123,373,750 which is to be satisfied SolarE I X EREMRFHEITX-
partly by cash as to HK$24,373,750 and the balance of N7 RSB IE 2 BB AUE B 123,373,750
HK$99,000,000 by the issue of shares at HK$0.165 per share. Jo: H $24,373,750# T B & X

17 - 82 3899,000,000% JTi&E @ 1% B 8
0.165B TZ RER|ITRHZI TR

e
' 32. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 32, BEBHF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassiﬁed to conform ETHRHEFEEFTELURESEAEE
. with the current year’s presentation. Z 23 H K.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A MERE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
“®BHE “TIMF —FF=F EToF “BT—F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TH#T T T Tt F# T Ti#ET
(restated)
(FE3))
(Note)
(Kft3E)
Results e
Turnover BHEHE 48,174 61,184 91,636 5,543 25,070
(Loss)/Profit from operations 1R # & A R
after charging finance costs ~ F A EM XK EE ‘
and non-operating expenses  (E51R) i F (375,796) (2,135) 5,948 (364,875)  (749,078)
Share of (loss)/ profit of FE {5 Bt E ‘
associates (E58) Al - - - - (1,355)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation WELAT (BE1) /i 7 (375,796)  (2,135) 5948 (364,875)  (750,433)
~ Taxation HIE (517) - 18 - (2,520)
(Loss)/Profit after taxation FL% (£518) /i F (376,313)  (2,135) 5966  (364,875)  (752,953)
Minority interests LEBRRER - 9 - -~ 8,455
(Loss)/Profit for the year EE (8 A (376,313) (2,126) 5,966 (364,875) (744,498)
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Five Year Financial Summary (continved)

'gﬁ¢mﬁmg%)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
CERRFE “ETNEF ZTF=F ZFFE T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FH#T THET FET THER F#ET
(restated)
(E 3%}
(Note)
(Bf2t)
Assets and liabilities HERAM
Property, plant and W BB R#S
equipment 3 4 395,018 397,156 720,707
Goodwill Gk 47,890 50,602 53,314 - -
Other non—current HEtsEmepEEE
financial assets ' ' - - - - - 75,150
Net current assets/(liabilities) WEEE (EE) FE 38,042 369,677 (6,184)  (149,154) (59,711)
Total assets less current EESEERMABEHE
liabilities 85,935 420,283 442,148 248,002 736,146
Long term liabilities REBPEE - - - - (223,146)
Obligations under REEERRE
‘ finance leases - - - (32) (133)
Convertible notes AR E - - (69,000) (49,631) (631)
85,935 420,283 373,148 198,339 512,214
Share capital ’ Bz A= 27,525 17,094 13,079 124,383 503,753
Reserves M 58,410 403,189 360,069 73,956 8,461
Shareholders’ fund BREES 85,935 420,283 373,148 198,339 512,214

Note:  As a result of the change in accounting policy for goodwill in 2002,
2001 figures have been restated for comparison purpose.
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' b'ﬂ‘Notlce of Annual General Meetmg

Cpe o ERABYE

NOTICE is hereby given that the annual general meeting of ZEHEHREMEREFRLF (TALF])
REXCAPFITAL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will ~ ## R _ZEERFANAZ+—-BEHZTF
be held at Lecture Room B, Joint Professional Centre, Unit 1, Ground M=+ BESBERKEFRIGRFERS
Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong on O T—ZEEEBEAPOEEEBRITRE

i i

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31
March 2005. '

2. To re-elect directors.

3.  To authorize the board of directors to fix the remuneration of
directors.

4. To re-appoint auditors and authorize the board of directors to
fix their remuneration.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without .

amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary

resolution:—
“THAT:—

(1) subject to paragraphs (2) and (3} below, the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period

(as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company -

to purchase shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on any

other stock exchange on which the securities of the

Company may be listed and is recognized by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and/or the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other

stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and it is

hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

1 Wednesday, 31 August 2005 at 4:30 p.m. for the following purposes:— BERG EUEETIEIE: -

BEER
ERALNABRE_STAFZA= -
ALEEZSERHFREARESCHA
BT
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EREHM AR EEECEERSEZM
é_to

ol R
1.3 ‘%i'UT?%%(K%%%
BE) BEERER
EEIE

() ETFTXEQREQEERT: —R
REHRGHERAFTEFENAEME
i E?EET:’: A EEEEEST
GETAERA f%iﬁjiﬂ%
Ao 7 #Lﬁi% BEHR
BEEBEBERZRGRBHET

ZEREAEMBESEXS N RIERA
WHEF RSB EHES TR
RIS R M EEH T 5 TR IEET
ZHRE TEANFIFMAEAER
RN B Z LM
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Nétiée' of Annual General Meeting (continued)

ERTEE

(2) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be.purchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
{1) above shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue at the date of passing of this resolution, and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly;

(3) the aggregate amount of subscription rights attached to
the warrants to be purchased by the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (1) above shall not exceed 10
per cent of the aggregate amount of subscription rights
attached to such warrants outstanding at the date of
passing this resolution, and the said approval shall be
limited accordingly; and

(4) for the purposes of this resolution:-
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:~

‘ (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company;

(ii) the revocation or variation of the authority given
under thijs resolution by ordinary resolution of the

members of the Company in general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required

by any applicable laws or the Company’s bye-laws to

be held.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without
" amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary

resolution:-
"THAT:-

(1) subject to paragraph (3) below, the exercise by the directors

of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter

- defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue

' . and deal with additional shares in the share capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and

options which might require the exercise of such power

be hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

84 REXCAPITAL International Holdings Limited » IR ERERFR LT
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4)

(3)

B - Notice of Annual General Meéting (co)ztinued)

"R KB E o

the approval in paragraph (1) above shall authorize the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to
make or grant offers, agreements and options which might

require the exercise of such power after the end of the °

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or
agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted

(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the -

directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in

paragraph (1) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights -

Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the exercise of any option
under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the
time being adopted for the grant or issue to relevant eligible
participants of shares or rights to acquire shares of the
Company; (iii) the exercise of subscription rights or
conversion rights attaching to the warrants issued by the
Company or anv securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company and from time to time outstanding;
or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing
for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per cent
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue at the date of passing of this
resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly;

for the purposes of this resolution, “Relevant Period” shall
have the same meaning as in resolution no. 5(4) above;
and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or other securities
of the Company open for a period fixed by the directors
of the Company to holders of shares of the Company or
any class thereof on the register on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such shares or class
thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements
as the directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of,
or the requirements of any recognized regulatory body or
any stock exchange in any territory outside the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China).”
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Notxce of Annual General Meetmg (cmmnucd)
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To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without
amendments, the following resolution as an ordinary

resolution:—

“THAT conditional upon the passing of resolutions nos. 5 and
6 set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company to exercise
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the share capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options be hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to resolution no. 5 set out in the notice
convening this meeting, provided that such amount shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of
this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without
amendments, the following resolution as a special resolution:—

“THAT the bve-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) be and
are hereby amended as follows:-

(1) amending the existing Bye-law 66 by:

(i) inserting the words “voting by wayv of a poll is
required by the rules of the Designated Stock
Exchange or” after the words “on a show of hands
unless” in the third sentence of Bye-law 66;

(ii) deleting the full-stop at the end of existing Bye-law
66(d) and replacing therewith a semicolon and the
word “or”; and

(iii) inserting the following as new Bye-law 66(e):

“(e) if required by the rules of the Designated Stock
Exchange, by any Director or Directors who,
individually or collectively, hold proxies in
respect of shares representing five per cent. (5%)
or more of the total voting rights at such

meeting.”
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Chatrman

- Notice of Annual General Meetmg (contmued) .

. SO AE KRB % s

deleting the existing Bye-law 68 in its entirety and
substituting therefor the following:

“68. If a poll is duly demanded the result of the poll shall
be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which
the poll was demanded. The Company shall only be
required to disclose the voting figures on a poll if
such disclosure is required by the rules of the
Designated Stock Exchange.”

amending the existing Bye-law 86(2) by:

(i) deleting the word “annual” after the word “following”
in the second sentence of Bye-law 86(2); and

(i) inserting the following as the last sentence of Bye-
law 86(2):

“Any Director appointed pursuant to this Bye-law
shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire bv rotation pursuant to Bye-law 88.”

amending the existing Bye-law 88 by deleting the first
sentence thereof and substituting therefor the following:

“At each Annual General Meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (excluding those holding the office of
Chairman or Managing Director) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Every
Director holding the office of Chairman or Managing
Director shall be subject to re-election once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the

22

meeting at which he retires.

By order of the board

Chan How Chung, Victor

Hong Kong; 29 July 2005
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‘Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

CREBERETEE 0

88

As at the date hereof, the executive directors of the Company are
Mr Chan How Chung, Victor, Miss Lee Huei Lin, Mr Chan Wai
Kwong, Peter, Mr Chu Chik Ming, Jack and Mr Seligman Pierre.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are Mr
Chow Siu Ngor, Mr Yin Tat Man and Mr Chan Pei Cheong, Andy.

Notes:—

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may appoint

more than one proxy to attend the meeting.

2. Inorder to be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of attorney
or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or.a notarially
certified copy thereof, must be deposited with the Comi:)any‘s branch
registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting or any adjourned meeting thereof.

3. A document setting out further information regarding resolutions nos.

2 and 5 to 8 above will be despatched to shareholders together with
the 2005 Annual Report.
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